1989

Kelly Wagner v. Farmers Insurance Exchange : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This Court has jurisdiction over this appeal by virtue of the provisions of Utah Code Ann. § 78-2-2(3)(j)(Supp. 1988).

ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Should the reasonable expectations of an insured be enforced even if they are inconsistent with the express terms of a policy of insurance issued to him?

DETERMINATIVE PROVISIONS OF LAW

There are no constitutional provisions, statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations which are determinative of this appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an action wherein Plaintiff Kelly Wagner is seeking a judicial declaration that she is entitled to uninsured motorist benefits pursuant to a contract entered into between her late husband, Thomas Wagner, and Defendant Farmers Insurance Exchange. The matter was submitted to the Court below on cross motions for summary judgment on the basis of stipulated and undisputed facts. Judgment was entered for the Defendant on April 20, 1988.

The facts of this action have never been disputed. Thomas Wagner died as a result of injuries received in a single vehicle automobile accident which occurred in the morning hours of November 15, 1986. He was survived by the Plaintiff, his

wife, and a six-month-old son, Tyler Thomas Wagner. At the time of the accident, Mr. Wagner was riding as a passenger in his own insured vehicle, a 1979 Porsche 928. The car was being driven by Charles P. Lingle with the permission of Mr. Wagner and the accident was caused by the negligence of Charles Lingle.

The vehicle involved in the accident was owned by Tom Wagner and insured by Farmers under a policy which had \$100,000 liability, uninsured and underinsured motorist coverage. (A copy of the policy issued by Farmers is included herein as Exhibit "1" in the addendum to this brief.) Mr. Lingle had no liability insurance at the time of the accident except that provided by Mr. Wagner's own coverage through Farmers. (See Exhibit "2" in addendum, Stipulation, R. at 51-52).

The Farmers' agent who conducted the negotiations which resulted in the issuance of the policy in question testified that he had no specific recollection of his negotiations with Mr. Wagner, but he did indicate that his habit and practice in describing the scope of Farmers' insurance coverage was to explain that Farmers offers "underinsurance" benefits as a part of its uninsured motorist coverage, which insurance will pay up to a specified amount selected by the insured (\$100,000 in this case) in the event an insured is injured in an accident through the fault of another person who has no insurance or a lesser amount of liability coverage than the limits chosen by the insured for uninsured

motorist coverage. (R. at 79, Depo. of Calvin Coleman at pp. 14-15).

The agent also testified that he does not routinely explain the exclusions applicable to Farmers' "underinsurance" coverage and that a proposed purchaser cannot negotiate to obtain different policy provisions than those contained in the policy issued to Mr. Wagner. (R. at 79, Depo. of Calvin Coleman at pp. 28-29).

The policy in question has several different provisions which are brought into play by the unusual facts of this case. First, the liability section of the policy defines as an "insured" any person driving the insured vehicle with the owner's permission. (Part I--Liability, paragraph 3a). However, the exclusions under the liability portion of the policy exclude "liability for bodily injury to an insured person." (Part I--Liability Exclusions, paragraph 11).

The Uninsured Motorist section of the policy provides for payment of sums sustained as damages by the neglect of the operator of an uninsured motor vehicle. (Part II--Uninsured Motorist). One definition of an "uninsured motor vehicle" includes vehicles which are insured but "in amounts less than the limits of Uninsured Motorist Coverage shown in the Declaration." (Part II--Uninsured Motorist, paragraph 3b). Mr. Wagner's Declaration showed \$100,000/\$300,000 Uninsured Motorist Coverage. The policy also provides that the term

"Uninsured motor vehicle, however, does not mean a vehicle:
a. Owned by or furnished or available for the regular use of
you or any family member." (Part II--Uninsured Motorist,
paragraph 4). The exclusions under this coverage include a
disclaimer of any liability for bodily injury sustained by a
person "occupying any vehicle owned by you or a family member
for which insurance is not afforded under this policy or
through being struck by that vehicle." (Part II--Uninsured
Motorist Exclusions, paragraph 1).

Finally, in the liability section of the policy, under
a heading entitled "Other Insurance," there is a proviso that
Farmers "will provide insurance for an insured person, other
than you or a family member, up to the limits of the Financial
Responsibility Law only." (Part I--Liability, Other Insurance).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Insurance policies are contracts of adhesion and, as
such, they should be interpreted in a fashion which honors the
reasonable expectations of the insured. If an insurer promises
to provide coverage to protect an insured from the risk of loss
arising from injuries caused by a motorist who has less
liability insurance coverage than the insured purchases for
underinsured motorist protection, the insurer is not thereafter
free to alter this promise by issuing a policy term which
operates to define certain underinsured motorists as not being
underinsured for the purposes of the policy issued.

If a literal application of a policy's terms would defeat the very purpose for which the insured purchased the insurance then the offending provision cannot be given effect.

The reality of how insurance policies are marketed in a modern economy mandate that the Court abandon the fiction that such policies are contracts whose terms are bargained for by the parties. Insurance policies must be construed in such a fashion as to provide coverage where an objectively reasonable expectation of coverage has been created by the basic promise of coverage made by the insurer's selling agent.

ARGUMENT

AN INSURANCE POLICY, AS A CONTRACT OF ADHESION,
MUST BE INTERPRETED IN A MANNER WHICH WILL
HONOR THE REASONABLE EXPECTATIONS OF THE INSURED

The insurance policy in question contains numerous interrelated provisions which, if read literally, operate to deny the Plaintiff the very benefits for which her husband contracted with Farmers Insurance Exchange. Mr. Wagner requested a policy giving him \$100,000 of "underinsured" motorist coverage, which coverage Farmers' agent represented would "supplement the bodily injury insurance" (R. at 79, Coleman Depo. at 15) of any individual who negligently caused Mr. Wagner injury if that person was insured for liability in an amount less than \$100,000. In the instant case, Mr. Wagner died as a result of the negligence of an individual who had no personal liability insurance. Farmers acknowledged that this

individual had liability coverage under Mr. Wagner's own policy but asserted that this liability coverage was limited to \$20,000.00 by virtue of the "other insurance" portion of Mr. Wagner's policy. Farmers further asserted that the Wagner policy provided no supplemental "underinsurance" because that form of coverage was defined in the policy itself not to be available for an operator of an underinsured vehicle owned and insured by the named insured in the policy itself (Mr. Wagner), even if that vehicle was rendered "underinsured" by virtue of the terms of the very policy in question.

There is no suggestion in the record that Mr. Wagner was even made aware that the convoluted interplay of his policy's numerous definitions and exclusions operated to deprive him of underinsurance coverage in a situation where he was injured by the negligence of an otherwise uninsured permissive user of his own insured vehicle. An interpretation of the contract which would permit such a result is contrary to the reasonable expectations of any insured and to the dictates of sound public policy.

In analyzing the provisions of an insurance policy, it must be borne in mind that they are not typical contracts, the terms of which are bargained for by the parties. As this Court noted in Farmers Ins. Exchange v. Call, 712 P.2d 231, 236 (Utah 1985),

automobile insurance is generally sold
through adhesion contracts that are not

negotiated at arm's length. Purchasers commonly rely on the assumption that they are fully covered by the insurance that they buy.

As occurred in this case, an insurance purchaser generally requests particular categories of coverage (liability, uninsured motorist) in particular amounts and the insurer responds by sending out a policy which purports to grant such coverage. (R. at 79, Depo. of Calvin Coleman, pp. 10-13). To the extent that the policy issued, by its terms, unreasonably excludes the very coverage requested its terms should not be literally applied. As one scholar has indicated:

The objectively reasonable expectations of applicant and intended beneficiaries regarding the terms of insurance contracts will be honored even though painstaking study of the policy provisions would have negated those expectations.

Keeton, Insurance Law Rights at Variance with Policy Provisions, 83 Harv.L.Rev. 961, 967 (1970).

In the instant case, Mr. Wagner would have only realized that he had no underinsurance coverage for the situation presented at the time of his death if he had read the entirety of his policy and been able to determine that the "Other Insurance" clause in his liability policy limited the liability coverage of a permissive user to \$20,000.00 (in accordance with the "Financial Responsibility Law," which he would have had to understood to mean the "Safety Responsibility

Act" in Utah) and that the uninsured motorist coverage would not apply because even though one definition in the policy would make the vehicle "uninsured" (paragraph 3b), a second definition purports to exclude the vehicle (paragraph 4). Furthermore, he would have had to disregard the implication contained in the first exclusion to uninsured motorist coverage, which provides that coverage isn't available for injuries occurring while occupying owned vehicles "for which insurance is not afforded under this policy," which clearly implies that injuries occurring while occupying an owned vehicle which is insured under the policy are covered.

The massive ambiguity created by the interplay of these disparate and self-contradictory policy provisions does not satisfy the demand of public policy, which "requires that persons purchasing [automobile insurance] policies are entitled to be informed, in writing, of the essential terms of insurance contracts, especially exclusionary terms." Farmers Ins. Exchange v. Call, supra, at 236. If this "information" is provided by a writing which can only be understood by a lawyer, it is unreasonable to assume that the policy purchaser has been placed on notice regarding the way in which the policy issued deviates from the coverage requested. Therefore, to apply the policy's literal terms would be to allow the insurer to accept the applicant's "offer" by issuing a policy which is, in reality, a counteroffer, though the applicant doesn't

understand it to be such.

Much has been written in recent years concerning the emergence of the "new" theory of honoring the reasonable expectations of insureds when construing insurance contracts. See, e.g., Abraham, Judge-Made Law and Judge-Made Insurance: Honoring the Reasonable Expectations of the Insured, 67 Va.L.Rev. 1151 (1981); Keeton, Insurance Law Rights at Variance with Policy Provisions, 83 Harv.L.Rev. 961 (1970). Proper analysis of the reasonable expectations theory, however, demonstrates that it is neither a new nor radical approach to contract law. As the Supreme Court of Arizona noted in Darner Motor Sales, Inc. v. Universal Underwriters Ins. Co., 140 Ariz. 383, 682 P.2d 388 (1984):

"Emergence" is probably an inaccurate description of the use of the reasonable expectations test since, if correctly understood, that doctrine has long been a basic principle in the law of contracts.

682 P.2d at 394.

The essence of the reasonable expectations approach to insurance policies is simply that certain standardized boiler-plate provisions of insurance contracts, which are almost invariably contracts of adhesion, don't in fact correctly state the real "agreement" made between an insured and an insurer's selling agent. Though courts have, on occasion, blurred the distinction, it is important to remember that while a written standardized policy "may be coextensive

with the agreement, it is not the agreement but only evidence thereof." Murray, The Parole Evidence Process and Standardized Agreements under the Restatement (Second) of Contracts, 123 U.Pa.L.Rev. 1342, 1389 (1975). Indeed, as another commentator has acknowledged:

Any contract with boiler-plate results in two several contracts: the dickered deal and the collateral one of supplementary boiler-plate.

Llewellyn, The Common Law Tradition, 371 (1960).

As noted by the Court in Darner,

we must remember that the usual insurance policy is a special kind of contract. It is largely adhesive; some terms are bargained, but most consist of boilerplate, not bargained for, neither read nor understood by the buyer, and often not even fully understood by the selling agent. In contract, as in other fields, the common law has evolved to accommodate the practices of the marketplace. Thus, in insurance law, as in other areas of contract law, the parole evidence rule has not been strictly applied to enforce an illusory "bargain" set forth in a standardized contract when that "bargain" was never really made and would, if applied, defeat the true agreement which was supposedly contained in the policy.

682 P.2d at 396.

The principle of construing adhesion contracts in a manner which would honor the reasonable expectations of the insured was adopted by the California Supreme Court in the leading case of Gray v. Zurich Ins. Co., 65 Cal.2d 263, 419 P.2d 168 (1966).

Although courts have long followed the basic percept that they would look to the words of

the contract to find the meaning which the parties expected from them, they have also applied the doctrine of adhesion contract to insurance policies, holding that in view of the disparate bargaining status of the parties we must ascertain that meaning of the contract which the insured would reasonably expect.

419 P.2d at 171-172.

The "reasonableness" of the insured's expectations of coverage must be determined from the circumstances surrounding the issuance of the policy in question, not simply the hope of coverage. However, what may make the expectation of coverage reasonable is the basic promise of coverage offered by the insurer's selling agent. As stated by the Court in Darner,

if not put in proper perspective, the reasonable expectations concept is quite troublesome, since most insureds develop a "reasonable" expectation that every loss will be covered by their policy. Therefore, the reasonable expectation concept must be limited by something more than the fervent hope usually engendered by loss. Such a limitation is easily found in the postulate contained in Corbin's work -- that the expectations to be realized are those that "have been induced by the making of a promise."

682 P.2d at 394.

If a promise of coverage is made, it is of no significance that an unbargained for boiler-plate limitation is inserted in the policy which purports to unreasonably restrict the original promise. The doctrine of a reasonable expectation

in adhesion contracts will not

give effect to boiler-plate terms which are contrary to either the expressed agreement or the purpose of the transaction as known to the contracting parties.

682 P.2d at 399 (emphasized). This is true even if the boiler-plate provision is, standing by itself, clear and unequivocal. As noted by Justice Durham in State Farm Mutual Auto. Ins. Co. v. Mastbaum, 748 P.2d 1042, (Utah 1987):

[j]udicial determination of the insured's reasonable expectations does not necessarily depend on the presence of an ambiguity in the policy.

748 P.2d 1047 (Durham, J., dissenting).

Turning to the facts in this case, the obvious question is: what promise did Farmers make to Mr. Wagner regarding uninsured motorist coverage? The policy itself sets forth the basic promise as follows:

Uninsured Motorist Coverage

We will pay all sums which an insured person is legally entitled to recover as damages from the owner or operator of an uninsured motor vehicle because of bodily injury sustained by the insured person. The bodily injury must be caused by accident and arise out of the ownership, maintenance or use of the uninsured motor vehicle.

This promise was given in response to Mr. Wagner's request for uninsured motorist coverage. Furthermore, Mr. Wagner requested, and received, an additional promise: that he would have \$100,000 coverage for bodily injury caused by an insured negligent driver, even though that driver wasn't insured for

that amount. This promise is given effect by a portion of the policy which defines an uninsured motor vehicle to include any vehicle insured for less than \$100,000. (See paragraph 3b, page 3 of the policy).

This was exactly the coverage Mr. Wagner requested and Mr. Coleman, as agent for Farmers, said the company would provide. This was the "deal" bargained for by Mr. Wagner. However, the policy issued contained a boiler-plate "definition" which purported to define Mr. Wagner's own insured vehicle in such a way as to deprive him of the benefits previously promised if he was injured by a negligent uninsured motorist driving Mr. Wagner's own car. This provision wasn't discussed with the agent, wasn't negotiated for, could not have been excluded, and would operate to frustrate the very purpose of the purchased insurance if it was given effect.

In this case there is no question that Mr. Wagner contracted to receive \$100,000 protection against the risk of being injured by the negligence of a driver who carried less than that amount of liability insurance. However, his purpose in doing so is entirely frustrated by a literal application of the policy issued because the Farmers policy he received defines one class of driver who is, in fact, underinsured, a permissive user of Mr. Wagner's own automobile, not to be underinsured. If a policy's terms are such as to exclude liability for the very risk for which insurance was purchased,

then the policy cannot be interpreted in conformity with its express terms. As noted by the Idaho Supreme Court,

an insurance contract is to be construed most favorably to the insured and in such a manner as to provide full coverage for the indicated risks rather than to narrow protection. This Court will not sanction a construction of the insurer's language that will defeat the very purpose or object of the insurance.

Erickson v. Nationwide Mutual Ins. Co., 97 Idaho 288, 293, 543 P.2d 841, 845 (1975). See also, Banner County v. Panhandle Rodeo Ass'n, Inc., 101 Idaho 772, 620 P.2d 1102 (1980).

Viewed differently, it can be seen that the Farmers policy issued to Mr. Wagner contains an inherent ambiguity. While one portion of the policy defines any vehicle with less than \$100,000 liability coverage to be "uninsured," a second portion of the policy says that the insured vehicle itself can never be "uninsured," even if it is. This isn't too surprising, because supposedly the vehicle has a \$100,000 of liability coverage. However, by operation of a third provision of the policy, the \$100,000 liability coverage isn't available to a certain class of drivers. It is logical to assume, therefore, that such an exclusion should place the insured vehicle back within the definition of "uninsured" vehicles contained in paragraph 3b.

In an analogous case, the Arizona Court of Appeals held that the ambiguity presented by application of different policy terms to a specific fact situation required a finding of

coverage. In State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co. v. Gibbs, 678 P.2d 459 (Ariz.App. 1983), Michael Gibbs died while riding as a passenger in his own insured vehicle. His policy contained a liability exclusion for damages suffered by the named insured, which exclusion the Court upheld against a public policy challenge. His heirs then claimed that if the exclusion was applicable, no insurance was available for the vehicle and, therefore, he was entitled to uninsured motorist coverage. The insurer pointed out that the policy defined an "uninsured motor vehicle" in such a way as to exclude any vehicle "insured under the liability coverage of this policy." The Court, however, rejected the literal application of the exclusion by noting that uninsured motorist provisions are intended to apply to situations where insurance isn't available to injured parties. If, therefore, the vehicle is in reality "uninsured" as relates to the injured party in light of a specific set of facts, then it can't be considered to be "insured" within the meaning of the policy definition. See also, State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co. v. Herron, 123 Ariz. 315, 599 P.2d 768 (1979).

The insurer also contended, however, that the deceased had elected not to insure himself for bodily injury protection and, therefore, he was excluded from uninsured motorist protection under the following uninsured motorist exclusion:

There is no coverage:

2. For bodily injury to an insured:
 - a. While occupying, . . .

.

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