1989

Kelly Wagner v. Farmers Insurance Exchange : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

The plaintiff argues that this provision was invalid because the deceased, Tom Wagner, reasonably expected that he would be covered if he were killed as a result of negligence on the part of the driver of his own vehicle while he was a passenger in the vehicle.

There is no claim in this case that the insured was not furnished a copy of the policy issued by the defendant which he presumably read or could have read. Nor is there any evidence that Tom Wagner expected to be covered under uninsured motorist coverage on his own motor vehicle. There is no evidence, as claimed by the plaintiff on page 2 of her Brief, that Tom Wagner was misled by any representation of the insurance agent who does not recall any conversation with Mr. Wagner about what kind of coverage was provided by uninsured motorist coverage. The agent did say that he usually tells prospective customers:

"If you are involved in an accident which you are not at fault and you are injured and that person does not have liability insurance to cover your medical costs, then you have coverage available under the uninsured motorist, and I also tell them that the uninsured motorist coverage also includes underinsured motorist which if you are involved in the same example of an accident and those persons did have insurance but they have lower limits than your medical costs were, that you may use that as a supplement to their bodily injury liability insurance..." (R. 79, p. 15)

That is a long way from telling an individual that if he is killed by the negligence of a driver whom he lets drive his own insured car while he is a passenger in the car he will be entitled to uninsured motorist coverage. We doubt that such an expectation ever occurred to either the agent or the insured. After all, a person does not expect to recover damages for the negligence of a person whom he lets drive his car while he is a passenger in his car. Were we to adopt the reasonable

expectation concept as advocated by the plaintiff in this case, it would enable an insured to write his own policy simply by asserting after the happening of an accident or the incurring of a loss that he expected at the time he bought a policy of insurance that that situation would be covered regardless of the provisions of the insurance contract. An automobile policy could be turned into a life insurance policy simply by the heirs of an insured asserting that they expected to recover the uninsured motorist coverage simply by reason of the insured being killed in an automobile accident. If the insured were not killed, it could be turned into a health and accident policy by the simple assertion that the insured expected to recover uninsured motorist coverage if he were injured in an accident. Obviously there are other requirements that must be met, but if we are permitted to disregard one provision of the policy, why not all.

POINT I.

WHEN MAY THE PROVISIONS OF A CONTRACT BE
MODIFIED, EXPLAINED OR IGNORED.

As is said in the case quoted in plaintiff's Brief on page 11, Darner Motor Sales v. Universal Underwriters, 682 P.2d 388 (Ariz. 1984), page 395:

"Of course, if not put in proper perspective, the reasonable expectations concept is quite troublesome, since most insureds develop a 'reasonable expectation' that every loss will be covered by their policy. Therefore, the reasonable expectation concept must be limited by something more than the fervent hope engendered by loss. Such a limitation is easily found in the Postulate contained in

Corbin's work -- that the expectations to be realized are those that 'have been induced by the making of a promise.'"

The court then went on to adopt the standards for determining "reasonable expectations" set out in the Restatement of Contracts, Second, Section 211, which provide:

(1) Except as stated in Subsection (3), where a party to an agreement signs or otherwise manifests assent to a writing and has reason to believe that like writings are regularly used to embody terms of agreements of the same type, he adopts the writing as an integrated agreement with respect to the terms included in the writing.

(2) Such a writing is interpreted wherever reasonable as treating alike all those similarly situated, without regard to their knowledge or understanding of the standard terms of the writing.

(3) Where the other party has reason to believe that the party manifesting such assent would not do so if he knew that the writing contained a particular term, the term is not part of the agreement.

In the Darner Motor Sales case, the agent for the insurer, according to the plaintiff, had actually misrepresented the limits of coverage provided in the policy and had actually told the insured that although the policy in question provided only 15/30,000 coverage, the all-risk clause of the umbrella policy would provide additional coverage to limits of 100/300,000.

The case of Gray v. Zurich Insurance Company, cited by the plaintiff, 419 P.2d 168 (Calif. 1966), involved the duty of an insurer to defend an assault action against an insured under a

comprehensive liability policy where the policy provided "the company shall defend any lawsuit against the insured alleging such bodily injury or property damage and seeking damage which are payable under the terms of the endorsement" which policy further provided "this endorsement does not apply to bodily injury or property damage caused intentionally or at the direction of the insured." The court held that since the policy sets forth the duty to defend as the primary one and since the insurer attempts to avoid it only by an unclear exclusionary clause, the insured would reasonably expect that it is legally entitled to such protection. The court then went on to explain why it found the exclusionary clause unclear, pointing out the nature of the obligation to defend itself necessarily uncertain in that no one can determine whether the third-party suit does or does not fall within the indemnification coverage of the policy until that suit is resolved saying since the policy contains its own seeds of uncertainty, the insured has held out a promise that by its very nature is ambiguous.

In the case of Bonner County v. Panhandle Rodeo Association, also cited by the plaintiff, 620 P.2d 1102 (Idaho 1980), it was held an exclusionary clause for sole negligence found in a policy issued to one of the lessees of the fairgrounds did not exclude coverage of lessors of additional insureds as to injuries suffered by woman who fell from bleacher seat while attending a rodeo which was sponsored by lessees where

the policy disclosing exclusions was never issued to lessor. The certificate, a policy and its endorsement, all indicated there was coverage for underlying contracts and agreements and the lease agreement provided for indemnification for any liability, including liability resulting from the lessor's sole negligence. The court said:

"The rule in Idaho is that 'in the absence of ambiguity, contracts for insurance must be construed as any other and understood in their plain, ordinary and proper sense, according to the meaning derived from the plain wording of the contract.'"

The court then went on to say that where there is ambiguity, the court is not confined to the wording of the contract but should consider extrinsic matters such as the intent of the parties, the purpose sought to be accomplished, the subject matter of the contract, and the circumstances surrounding the issuance of the policy.

In the case of Reserve Insurance Company v. Pisciotto, 640 P.2d 764 (Calif. 1982), the insured's stepson sued the insured and several others for injuries sustained when the owner's boat collided with another. One of the watercraft liability policies contained a provision that the policy did not apply to bodily injury to insured or any member of family of the insured in the same household as insured. The court held that a reasonable insured could have believed that the term family did not encompass his stepchildren and since use of the terms household in conjunctive sense with family raised inference that

they were not intended to be synonymous.

The case of Erikson v. Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company, 543 P.2d 841 (Idaho 1975), involved the construction of a health and accident policy which provided that the injury must have been sustained "as a direct result of an accident directly and independently of all other causes" in order to find liability within the requirements of the insurance policy. The court in construing that clause merely held the fact that a latent disease or bodily infirmity existed prior to the accident, upon which the accident acts to precipitate the loss, will not defeat coverage as long as the disease or infirmity appears as a passive ally and the accidental cause predominates.

In Farmers Insurance Exchange v. Call, 712 P.2d 231 (Utah 1985), the court held that the household family exclusion clause in an automobile policy is contrary to the public policy of this state and to the statutory requirements found in the No-Fault Insurance Act as to the minimum benefits provided by statute. The court then went on to hold that in that case the exclusion clause was not valid as to the policy limits in excess of the statutory minimum since Farmers failed to provide any evidence that it either delivered a copy of the policy containing the exclusion clause to the insureds or otherwise disclosed the exclusion clause to the insured, and the insured affirmatively alleged that they never received a copy of the contract.

POINT II.

THE PROVISION OF AN INSURANCE CONTRACT SHOULD CONTROL WHERE IT DOES NOT VIOLATE STATE LAW OR STATE PUBLIC POLICY, THERE IS NO AMBIGUITY IN THE POLICY AND NO MISREPRESENTATION OR PROMISE MADE OUTSIDE THE POLICY.

In the Nevada case of Zobrist v. Farmers Insurance Exchange (March 31, 1987), 734 P.2d 699 (Nevada 1987), the defendant insured several cars owned by the plaintiff Zobrist under a single policy with underinsured motorist limits of \$500,000. The policy included an uninsured motorist exclusion for owned but uninsured cars. Zobrist collided with another automobile while driving his own dune buggy, which was not insured under the policy. He received \$15,000, the policy limits of the other driver. Farmers and Zobrist stipulated that the total amount of damages exceeded this amount by \$35,000. The plaintiff Zobrist claimed that the applicable policy limits for underinsured motorist coverage is equal to or exceeds \$35,000. The defendant, on the other hand, contended that the underinsured motorist coverage is limited to \$15,000, the minimum required by statute. Accordingly, the defendant paid \$20,000 (\$5,000 for interest and costs). The Court sustained a judgment in favor of the defendant and held that the exclusion in the automobile policy for owned but uninsured cars was void to prevent payment of statutory minimum of \$15,000 under the underinsured motorist statute but valid to restrict payment of any amount in excess of \$15,000 minimum.

In an Idaho case, Dullenty v. Rocky Mountain Fire and Casualty Company (1986), 721 P.2d 198, Dullenty owned three motor vehicles, only one of which was insured with Rocky Mountain Fire and Casualty Company. He was involved in an accident with an uninsured motorist while driving one of the cars which was not insured by the defendant. The policy provided:

"This supplement [uninsured motorist coverage] does not apply:

....
"(c) to any other vehicle or automobile owned by or furnished for regular use to the named insured and while resident of the same household, his spouse and relatives of either...."

The district court granted summary judgment in favor of the insurer. The Court of Appeals reversed, and the Supreme Court reversed the Court of Appeals and sustained the district court holding:

(1) The automobile insurer statute did not require an insurance carrier to extend uninsured motorist coverage to an insured occupying his own vehicle which was not insured by the carrier under a liability policy, and (2) public policy did not require a clause excluding coverage for insured occupying his own vehicle which was not insured by the carrier under motor liability policy to be invalidated.

In a case directly in point, Willey v. Farmers Insurance Group, 523 P.2d 1351 (N. M. 1974), the very language involved in this policy was construed by the New Mexico court. The plaintiff had in force with the defendant insurance company a standard automobile liability policy with an uninsured motorist

endorsement attached thereto. The plaintiff was a passenger in her own car which was being driven by one Boydston, when the latter negligently collided with another automobile, resulting in the plaintiff's death. Boydston had no insurance in force in his own name. In defining an uninsured motorist vehicle, the policy of the defendant provided that it shall not include "a motor vehicle owned by or furnished for the regular use of the named insured." The trial court granted summary judgment dismissing the plaintiff's action against the uninsured motorist carrier and the Supreme Court affirmed. The Court held that the definition of an uninsured motorist vehicle which does not include a motor vehicle owned or furnished for the regular use of the insured does not violate the uninsured motorist statute.

In the Utah case of Clark v. State Farm Mutual Insurance Company, 743 P.2d 1227 (Utah 1987), Clark was killed by an uninsured motorist who negligently hit the motorcycle which Clark was driving. Clark had not insured his motorcycle but had purchased insurance for his car from the insurer. The Clark family sued attempting to collect under an uninsured motorist clause in the policy on the car. The policy contained an uninsured motorist clause which was limited by another clause stating that the uninsured motorist insurance does not apply if the insured is driving a vehicle owned by him or residents of the same house and the vehicle is not an "owned motor vehicle" under the policy. The policy defined "owned motor vehicle" as vehicles

described in the declaration of the policy, temporary substitutes for those vehicles and newly acquired vehicles. The parties agreed that the motorcycle was not a temporary substitute or newly acquired automobile.

The Clarks argued that the District Court erred in giving the contractual language its plain meaning because of Utah Code Annotated, Section 41-12-21.1 (1981), recodified in Utah Code Annotated, Sections 31A-22-302, 31A-21-305, which created a personal right to uninsured motorist coverage and expresses a legislative statement of public policy that forbids exceptions to uninsured motorist coverage.

The Supreme Court disagreed and held that the exclusion was valid. The Court said:

"We do not think that the statute, which merely requires insurers to offer uninsured motorist coverage and authorizes motorists to waive the coverage, evinces a legislative intent to allow an individual to purchase insurance on one vehicle and obtain coverage on all the other vehicles in his household."

Under a similar set of facts, the holding in the Clark case was followed in the case of Hind v. Quilles, 69 Utah Adv. Rep. 9 (November 1987). Both of these cases illustrate that the Court will not extend the insurance coverage beyond that provided by the language in the policy where the language defining the coverage afforded does not violate the provisions of the statute of the State of Utah requiring such coverage and outlining the extent of such coverage.

In State Farm Mutual Auto Insurance v. Mastbaum, 748 P.2d 1042 (Utah 1987), the same issue arose. The evidence indicated that the insured did receive a copy of the insurance policy at the time it was issued by the plaintiff and the sole question for determination was whether or not the household and family exclusion is valid in a policy issued by the plaintiff (State Farm Mutual Insurance Company) in excess of those which are statutorily mandated. The Court cited the case of Allstate Insurance Company v. U.S. Fidelity & Guaranty Company, 619 P.2d 329, Utah 1980, which held that an exclusion of a named driver was unenforceable only to the extent of a statutory minimum coverage and then went on to say:

"We adhere to Allstate and the majority view and hold that the household or family exclusion is valid in this state as to insurance provided by an automobile policy in excess of the statutorily mandated amounts and benefits. While the minority view is attractive from the standpoint of an injured victim, the policy must be enforced as written when its provisions do not conflict with our mandatory automobile insurance statutes."

In a dissenting opinion, Justice Durham felt the case, in the absence of the policy itself and without a more compelling description of the nature of the negotiations and circumstances surrounding the contract formation should be remanded to the trial court to take evidence in regard to those claims. Justice Zimmerman, in a concurring opinion, felt that with respect to the adhesion contract arguments made by Justice Durham, he would not

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